Schools Forum agenda
Date:

Tuesday 13 October 2020

Time:

1.30 pm

Venue:

MS Teams Virtual Meeting

Membership:
Ms J Antrobus (Newton School), Ms J Cochrane (Sir Henry Floyd Grammar School),
Ms P Coppins (Manor Farm Community Infant School), A Cranmer, Ms S Cromie (Wycombe
High School), Ms J Freeman (Rye Liaison Group), Mr A Gillespie (Burnham Grammar School),
Mr D Hood (Cressex Community School), Mrs J Male (Alfriston School), Mr K Patrick (Chiltern
Hills Academy) (Chairman), Mrs D Rutley (Aspire PRU), Ms S Skinner (Growing Together
Federation (Bowerdean & Henry Allen Nursery Schools)), Mr S Sneesby (Kite Ridge School),
Ms E Stewart (Stoke Mandeville Combined School), Ms K Tamlyn (Cheddington Combined
School) (Vice-Chairman), Mr B Taylor (Special School Representative), Mr A Wanford (Green
Ridge Academy) and Ms J Watson (Lent Rise School)

Webcasting notice
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the council's
website. At the start of the meeting the chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is
being filmed.
You should be aware that the council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act.
Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the council’s
published policy.
Therefore by entering the meeting room, you are consenting to being filmed and to the
possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.
If members of the public do not wish to have their image captured they should ask the
committee clerk, who will advise where to sit.
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the monitoring officer at
monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk.

Agenda Item

Page No

1

Election of Chairman & Vice-Chairman

2

Apologies & Changes in Membership

3

Declarations of Interest
To disclose any Personal or Disclosable Pecuniary Interests.

4

Minutes of the Previous Meeting

5

Schools Forum Funding Group Update
Verbal update to be provided by the Chairman of the SFFG, Ms K
Tamlyn.

6

Revenue Budget Monitoring
To be presented by Ms E Williams, Head of Finance- Childrens Services,
Buckinghamshire Council.

9 - 14

7

High Needs Update
To be presented by Ms E Williams, Head of Finance- Childrens Services
and Ms H Slinn Head of Integrated SEND, Buckinghamshire Council.

15 - 36

8

National Funding Formula and Operational Guidance 2021-22
To be presented by Ms E Williams, Head of Finance- Childrens Services,
Buckinghamshire Council.

37 - 42

9

De-delegation 2021-22
To be presented by Ms E Williams, Head of Finance- Childrens Services,
Buckinghamshire Council.

43 - 50

10

Update from the Local Authority
Verbal update to be provided by Mr G Drawmer, Head of Achievement
and Learning and Mr Simon James, Service Director for Education,
Buckinghamshire Council.

11

AOB

12

Date of the Next Meeting
08 December 2020, 1.30pm.
Ms Teams Virtual Meeting.

3-8

If you would like to attend a meeting, but need extra help to do so, for example because of
a disability, please contact us as early as possible, so that we can try to put the right support
in place.

For further information please contact: Christina Beevers on 01296 382938, email
democracy@buckscc.gov.uk.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4

Schools Forum minutes
Minutes of the meeting of the Schools Forum held on Tuesday 30 June 2020 in MS Teams
Virtual Meeting, commencing at 1.30 pm and concluding at 4.00 pm.

Members present
Ms J Antrobus, Ms J Cochrane, Ms P Coppins, Cllr A Cranmer, Ms S Cromie, Ms J Freeman,
Mr A Gillespie, Mr D Hood, Mrs J Male, Mr K Patrick, Mrs D Rutley, Ms E Stewart,
Ms K Tamlyn, Mr B Taylor, Mr A Wanford and Ms J Watson

Others in attendance
Ms S Bayliss, Ms C Beevers, Mrs G Bull, Mr J Carter, Mr G Drawmer, Ms C Glasgow,
Mr S James, Mr R Page, Dr K Simmons, Ms H Slinn, Ms S Stephens and Ms E Williams

Agenda Item
1

Apologies for Absence/Changes in Membership
Apologies were received from:
Mr H Beveridge (Long Crendon School), Ms J Divers (Turnfurlong School), Ms S Fahey
(Brindley House School), Ms N Lovegrove (The Village Pre-School), Ms S Skinner
(Bowerdean & Henry Allen Nursery Schools), Mr S Sneesby (Kite Ridge School).
The Chairman introduced Mr Simon James, Service Director for Education,
Buckinghamshire Council and welcomed him to the meeting and the Schools Forum
Committee.

2

Declarations of Interest
There were none.

3

Schools Forum Funding Group Update
The action notes from the Schools Forum Funding Group were appended to the
minutes for information.

4

2019-20 Financial Outturn
Ms E Williams, Head of Finance- Childrens Services, Buckinghamshire Council, gave
an overview of the report provided.

Page 5

Recommendation:
Schools Forum Funding Group is asked to note the final outturn position against the
Dedicated Schools Grant in 2019-20
Resolved:
The Schools Forum NOTED the final outturn position against the Dedicated Schools
Grant in 2019-20.
5

High Needs Block Update
Ms E Williams, Head of Finance- Childrens Services, Buckinghamshire Council, gave
an overview of the report provided.

To explore whether the option of numbers/data of parental tribunal appeals would
be a Schools Forum piece.
ACTION: Ms E Williams
To review assumptions of the budget of the High Needs Block Spend- exceptional
support budget prior to the meeting.
ACTION: Ms E Williams
Page 23, High Needs Recovery Plan - to add a name to each action as to who is
leading for each item. To also add some success criteria to each area, which is
measurable.
ACTION: Ms E Williams
Appendix 2- External placements- this was now well established, and a further
update would be provided at the next Schools Forum.
ACTION: Ms E Williams

Recommendation:
Schools Forum is asked to note the impact of the final outturn for 2019-20 on the
High Needs budget for 2020-21 and to agree the proposed approach for the
development of a High Needs Block Recovery Plan.
Resolved:
The Schools Forum NOTED the impact of the final outturn for 2019-20 on the High
Needs budget for 2020-21 and AGREED the proposed approach for the development
of a High Needs Block Recovery Plan.
6

Proposals for the Allocation of Top-Up Funding
Ms E Williams, Head of Finance- Childrens Services, Buckinghamshire Council, gave
an overview of the report provided.

Page 6

To share with the forum who is on the Needs and Provision working group.
ACTION: Ms E Williams
Recommendation:
Schools Forum is asked to
a) NOTE the outcomes of the consultation with schools on the mechanism for
allocating top-up funding for pupils with Education Health and Care Plans (EHCPs),
ie,
I. That the recommended approach of a needs led funding approach based on
an adapted model for Buckinghamshire is supported.
II.
That the model should be supported by a moderation process.
III.
That there should be a phased implementation, beginning with special
schools with roll out to mainstream and further settings in future years.
b) Note the proposed timelines for implementation.
c) Agree the basis for calculating top-up values proposed by the Needs and
Provision Group, including the application of a fringe uplift where appropriate.
d) Agree the principles for transition to the new model including support for
schools that would see a reduction in funding under the proposed model.
e) Agree to seek an exemption from the Minimum Funding Guarantee for Special
Schools in the 2021-22 financial year in order to move toward the new funding
mechanism through the implementation of transitional support.
Resolved:
Schools Forum:
a) NOTED the outcomes of the consultation with schools on the mechanism for
allocating top-up funding for pupils with Education Health and Care Plans (EHCPs),
ie,
IV. That the recommended approach of a needs led funding approach based on
an adapted model for Buckinghamshire is supported.
V. That the model should be supported by a moderation process.
VI. That there should be a phased implementation, beginning with special
schools with roll out to mainstream and further settings in future years.
b) NOTED the proposed time lines for implementation.
c) AGREED the basis for calculating top-up values proposed by the Needs and
Provision Group, including the application of a fringe uplift where appropriate.
d) AGREED the principles for transition to the new model including support for
schools that would see a reduction in funding under the proposed model.
e) AGREED to seek an exemption from the Minimum Funding Guarantee for Special
Schools in the 2021-22 financial year in order to move toward the new funding
mechanism through the implementation of transitional support.
7

School Balances
Mr J Carter, Senior Accountant, Buckinghamshire Council gave an overview of the
report provided.

Page 7

Recommendation:
To note the surplus and deficit balances for maintained schools as at 31 March 2020.
Resolved:
The Schools Forum NOTED the surplus and deficit balances for maintained schools
as at 31 March 2020.
8

Contingency Update
Mr David Hood, Cressex School gave an overview of the report provided.
Recommendations:
Schools Forum is asked to:
a) Note the report detailing the decisions of the Contingency Group.
b) Agree changes to the to the Contingency Group’s Terms of Reference as set
out in 2.4 and 2.5.
Resolved:
The School Forum:
a) NOTED the report detailing the decisions of the Contingency Group.
b) AGREED changes to the to the Contingency Group’s Terms of Reference as
set out in 2.4 and 2.5.

9

Forward Plan
The forum NOTED the forward plan.

10

Any Other Business
Post-19 Students - Change to School Funding Regulations for Post-19 Students
Ms H Slinn, Head of SEN gave an overview of the report provided.
Recommendation:
Schools Forum is asked to support the application to the DfE to vary the Schools
Funding rules to enable continued support of post-19 students in special schools as a
result of Covid-19
Resolved:
School Forum AGREED to SUPPORT the application to the DfE to vary the Schools
Funding rules to enable continued support of post-19 students in special schools as a
result of Covid-19
AOB



It was requested for best wishes, praise and thanks be passed on to Ms J Try
for all her hard work with the Schools Forum. Best wishes were sent for her
new role within Buckinghamshire Council.
It was requested if an officer would prepare a paper for the October meeting
on the gap in achievement in Buckinghamshire between black and minority
ethnic students and their white peers. To put forward a plan to address the

Page 8

issue as a matter of urgency including links for funding.
ACTION: Mr G Drawmer/Mr S James
11

Date of Next Meeting
13 October 2020, 1.30-4.00pm
MS Teams Virtual Meeting

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

Report to Schools Forum
Date: 13th October 2020
Title: Dedicated Schools Budget – Revenue Budget Monitoring 2020-21
Author: Liz Williams, Head of Finance (Children’s Services)
Recommendations: Schools Forum is asked to note the revenue budget monitoring
positon at the end of August and the requirement for a DSG Deficit Management Plan.
Reason for decision: For Information

1. Purpose of the Report
1.1. This report updates Schools Forum Funding Group on the current forecast for the
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) budget for the 2020-21 financial year, based on the
spend to 31st August 2020 (period 5).
1.2. An update on the impact of Covid-19 on school expenditure is included in the
report.
1.3. The report also includes the latest position on the DSG reserve and the requirement
for a deficit management plan.

2. DSG Allocation 2020-21
2.1. The latest DSG allocation for 2020-21 has been confirmed as follows:
DSG Block
Schools Block
High Needs Block
Early Years Block
Central Schools Services Block

July 2020 Allocation
Allocation After
Less Recoupment
before Recoupment
Recoupment
£m
£m
£m
343.6
(171.8)
171.9
90.0
(8.1)
81.9
32.6
0.0
32.6
6.5
0.0
6.5
472.6
(179.8)
292.8

Page 11

3. Forecast 2020-21
The overall Dedicated Schools Budget is currently projected to break even as at the end
of August however risks of up to £1.1m have been identified and are being closely
monitored with actions being put into place to mitigate. A summary is shown in the
following table:

DSG blocks 2020-21
Schools Block
High Needs Block
Supply Teaching & Additional
Support
Excluded pupils and re-integration
ARPS
Independent Placements
Learning support teachers
Equipment
Early Years Block
Central Schools Services Block
Premature retirement costs
Capita one Software licences
Total Risks

Risks at
30/09/20
£'000s
0

441
(58)
290
250
64
46
0
53
29
1,115

3.1. The key variances and risks are outlined as follows:


Additional Places and Exceptional Support – this budget is forecast to be
overspent by £441k against the budget of £513k, with a forecast spend of
£954k. Costs for those with EHCPs placed at Aspire and those in receipt of
home tuition via supply teaching account for the majority of this spend. Prior
year spend in this area was £1.46m. Significant steps have been made to
reduce spend showing an improvement of £507k compared to last year,
particularly within the supply teaching spend which has reduced from £606k to
£341k.



Excluded pupils and re-integration is showing a below budget spend of £58k
but this may be impacted by Covid and return to school.



ARP placements are expected to be over plan by £290k. This is being reviewed
but it is unlikely changes can be made to reduce this overspend this year

Page 12

meaning that the cost will need to be offset by savings elsewhere in the high
needs block.


Independent placements, at the latest forecast position, is at risk of a £250k
overspend with the pressures of tribunals and a number of high cost new
starters. Placement data is analysed in more detail in the High Needs Update
report on this agenda.



The cost for additional Learning support teachers is higher than plan for EHCP
delivery in schools by £64k.



Special equipment is forecast to above plan by £46k in line with last years
outturn. This is being reviewed.



In the Central block, costs for Premature Retirement Costs are over budget
£53k and the Capita One software licences are higher than budget £29k.



Early Years the impact on settings as a result of COVID is uncertain so at August
close the forecast position is held to breakeven. A sufficiency and sustainability
plan is underway.

3.2. Work is under way to mitigate these pressures and to identify opportunities to
further reduce costs.

4. Impact of Covid-19 on Schools Expenditure
Exceptional Costs related to Covid-19
4.1. The DfE published details of how schools can claim support for exceptional costs
related to covid-19 on 24th June. Support has been limited to exceptional costs
during the summer term for the following circumstances:





increased premises related costs associated with keeping schools open during
the Easter and/or summer half term holidays, for vulnerable children and the
children of critical workers, over and above the costs that schools would have
faced in other circumstances
support for free school meals for eligible children who are not attending
school, where those costs are not covered by the national voucher scheme
additional cleaning – required due to confirmed or suspected coronavirus
(COVID-19) cases, in line with COVID-19: cleaning of non-healthcare settings,
over and above the cost of existing cleaning arrangements.

4.2. Whilst schools were not expected to draw down on reserves to meet exceptional
costs, the DfE did not expect schools to claim if they were planning to add to their
reserves in this financial year.

Page 13

4.3. The first tranche of payments has been made by the DfE following claims from
schools. The total paid to date across maintained schools in Buckinghamshire is
£121k.
4.4. Budgets and forecasts for maintained schools will be reviewed at the end of Q2 to
fully assess the financial position across schools. However there is a clear risk that
the numbers of schools in financial deficit will increase as a result of the covid-19
pandemic.
Other Covid related Costs – Flu Vaccinations in Schools
4.5. The Buckinghamshire Council flu vaccination plan includes the aspiration to offer flu
jab vouchers to all primary school staff who are not already eligible for a free NHS
jab. It has been agreed at the Schools Leaders meeting with Public Health that the
cost of this will be met from School budgets at a cost of £10.50 per staff member.
Coronavirus Catch Up Premium
4.6. On 19th June the government announced £1 billion additional funding to help
England's children catch up on what they have missed while schools have been
closed. Guidance on how this funding will be allocated has now been published.
The funding is for the 2020-21 academic year.
4.7. The funding is split into two amounts:



£650 million Universal Catch Up Premium
£350 million National Tutoring Programme to support the most
disadvantaged pupils

Universal Catch Up Premium:
4.8. Available for all state funded mainstream and special schools and alternative
provision, and independent special schools to support all pupils in the 2020-21
academic year.
4.9. For mainstream schools funding will be allocated at £80 per pupil
4.10.For special schools and Alternative Provision funding will be allocated at £240 per
place
4.11.Schools have the flexibility to spend their funding in the best way for their cohort
and circumstances.
National Tutoring Programme
4.12.This funding is to provide additional, targeted support for those children and young
people who need the most help.
4.13.The programme will comprise of at least 2 parts in the 2020 to 2021 academic year,
including:

Page 14



5 to 16 programme that will make high-quality tuition available to 5 to 16 year
olds in state-funded primary and secondary schools from the second half of
autumn term 2020



16 to 19 fund for school sixth forms, colleges and all other 16 to 19 providers to
provide small group tutoring activity for disadvantaged 16 to 19 students whose
studies have been disrupted as a result of coronavirus (COVID-19).

4.14.Guidance setting out further detail of this element will be issued by the DfE.

5. DSG Reserve and Deficit Management Planning
5.1. Any variance against the DSG is to be managed through the DSG reserve which is
ringfenced. At the start of the 2020-21 financial year the council had a deficit of
£1.153m against its DSG reserve. Following contributions agreed by Schools Forum
in January from former Historic Commitment budgets and additional early years
funding received in July to reflect the impact of the January 2020 census on the
2019-20 DSG allocation, the reserve now has a positive balance of £86k.
5.2. These additions have ensured that the DSG deficit has been recovered at the start
of the year however the earmarked reserves that were held in previous years have
not been reinstated. The reserve previously contained earmarked reserves of £917k
against funds de-delegated from schools (£417k) and against the risk of the deficit
at Mandeville School (£500k).
5.3. There is also no contingency to support further pressures against the High Needs
Block.
5.4. The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG): conditions of grant 2020 to 2021 paragraph 5.2,
requires that any local authority (LA) with an overall deficit on its DSG account at
the end of 2019 to 2020 financial year, or whose DSG surplus has substantially
reduced during the year, must be able to present a plan to the Department for
Education (DfE) for managing their future DSG spend. The plan should be shown to
the local Schools Forum and should be kept regularly updated throughout the year
to reflect the most recent forecast position and be viewed as an on-going live
document.
5.5. To help LAs meet this requirement, the DfE has produced a management plan
template. The aim of the template is to enable LAs to formulate and present their
DSG management plans in a format that allows them to focus attention on
comparison of high needs provision against spend. Schools Forum has previously
agreed the main workstreams of the Buckinghamshire plan however the new
template will enable us to populate and monitor the detail.
5.6. The LA should aim to present the first version of the plan to the schools forum in
time for its budget planning discussions for 2021-22. It is proposed that the

Page 15

detailed template be considered at the December 2020 Schools Forum meeting.
Schools Forum may want to consider whether an additional meeting of the Schools
Forum Funding Group should be held specifically to review the detail of this
template.

Page 16

Agenda Item 7

Report to Schools Forum Funding Group
Date: 24th September 2020
Title: High Needs Block Update: Independent Schools Budget focus
Author and/or contact officer: Hero Slinn, Head of Integrated SEND Service; Liz Williams,
Head of Finance (Children’s Services)
Schools affected: All maintained schools and academies, FE Colleges and Early Years
Settings
Recommendations:
Schools Forum Funding Group is asked to note the impact of the revised budget
monitoring position on the High Needs budget for 2020-21 , specifically the independent
placements budget.
Moving forward, the budget will be split by school type to allow for increased monitoring
and scrutiny. Schools Forum is asked to note the data trends and the proposed next
steps.

Page 17

Executive Summary of Budget Spend
This report summarises the current position with the independent placements budget and
notes a forecast of £14,777,769 for this financial year, an overspend of £247,483. The
largest proportion of these are in Independent Special Schools (45%) with a forecast spend
for the year of £7,762,838. The most commonly recorded primary need (35%) across this
area is Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) which is in line with the fastest growing area of
need nationally for those with an EHCP (30%).
Independent Mainstream Schools
This cohort includes parents’ private placements where top up funding is provided, in line
with the value paid to a maintained mainstream or academy, as well as those where school
fees are paid in part or fully by the LA. Forecast for 2020-21 gives an average cost for these
placements as £19,730 with an overall cost of £2,111,128.
34% of those placed within these settings have a primary need of ASD. Children and young
people with a primary need of ASD or speech, language and communication needs account
for 59% of placements in independent mainstream schools. The national picture for those
with an EHCP is that these areas of need account for 45% of those with an EHCP. 82% of
placements are for CYP with a recorded ethnicity of White British compared to 64% of
Buckinghamshire maintained EHCPs and 62% of the Buckinghamshire state funded school
population. The majority of the independent mainstream school cohort have home
postcodes that fall within the ACORN category 1 – Affluent Achievers – 73%. Although a
small sample, this is significantly higher than the Buckinghamshire EHCP population of 31%.
Independent Special Schools
The fees for these schools are paid in full by the Local Authority from the high needs block.
Forecast for 2020-21 gives an average cost for these placements at £56,663 and a total cost
for the year of £7,762,838. The highest overall cost by need is for ASD at £3,441,199.
39% of those placed in these schools have a primary need of ASD, and 27% have a primary
need of SEMH. 50% of these are recorded as being high functioning. 71% have a recorded
ethnicity of White British compared to 64% of Buckinghamshire maintained EHCPs and 62%
of the Buckinghamshire state funded school population. The majority of the independent
special school cohort have home postcodes that fall within the ACORN category 1 – Affluent
Achievers – 73%. This is significantly higher than the Buckinghamshire school population
which is 42% and the Buckinghamshire EHCP population of 31%.
Non-maintained Special Schools
The fees for these schools are paid in full by the LA from high needs block. The highest
overall cost by need is for ASD at £1,212,195 and the highest average cost per placement is
for PMLD at £182,312.
CYP with primary need of ASD account for 28% of placements. 74% are recorded as having
ethnicity of White British compared to 64% of the Buckinghamshire EHCP population. 60%

Page 18

of those placed in non-maintained special schools have a postcode recorded with the
ACORN category 1 – Affluent Achievers compared with 31% of the Buckinghamshire EHCP
population.
New placements during 2020-21
26 placements have commenced so far during this financial year. The full year cost would
be £1,420,294 with an average cost per placement of £54,627, however many of these
students joined their settings midway through the financial year (September). 46% of the
September placements are in independent special schools and 42% in independent
mainstream schools. This is an increase of 7% in the proportion of placements in
independent mainstream schools compared to all 2020-21 placements.
50% of the new starters have a primary need of ASD. 10 out of the 12 placed in
independent special schools this year have a primary need of ASD or SEMH and are
classified as high functioning, as well as the 2 placed in non-maintained special schools. 85%
of the children placed in these settings this year have an ethnicity of White British,
compared with 64% of the Buckinghamshire EHCP population. 58% had an ACORN postcode
classified as Affluent Achievers compared with 31% of the population.
Placement Leavers during 2020-21
45 placements ceased at the end of the academic year. The full year cost of these
placements based on 20-21 fees would have been £2,433,603 with an average cost of
£54,627, however these costs are pro-rotad for the forescast as the students left the
placement during the financial year. 49% of the leavers were in independent special schools
and 36% in independent mainstream schools. Across all placement types there are a higher
number of leavers than starters.
Placement Start Dates
Increased placements in all sectors within this budget have occurred between 2017 and 2019
in Buckinghamshire, which is only true nationally of those transitioning to independent
special schools. In independent mainstream schools, there was increased entry upon phase
transfer to secondary school for those with ASD or SLCN needs. For those attending
independent special schools, there were increased placements for those with ASD or SEMH
at transition to secondary school and particularly for those with ASD at the start of Key Stage
4.

Page 19

Title: High Needs Block Update: Independent Schools Budget focus – Full Paper
1.1. Purpose of the Report
The purpose of this report is to outline the projected costs for the independent schools
budget for 2020-21 against the actual budget and mitigating actions taken / being taken
to support a close to budget position for the end of the financial year. This is the
outcome of a recovery action detailed in the Schools Forum Paper of June 2020 on the
High Needs Block, 4.2.4, ‘Review of External Placements’.
This paper will further breakdown the allocated budget by school type; independent
mainstream, independent special and non-maintained special to give an in depth
analysis of the cohort of children attending these settings.
2. Current Position and Implications for Future Year
The forecast for the financial year 2020/21 for this budget is £14,777,769. This is based
upon there having been 302 placements recorded over the course of the financial year
with 45 leaving their placements to attend a maintained mainstream, special school, or
further education setting, or progressing to higher education or employment meaning
their EHC plans have now been ceased. A further 26 new placements started in
September 2020 impacting this budget. The budget set for this financial year is
£14,530,286, meaning an overspend of £247,483 is forecast for 2020/21. Last year
(2019-20) spend was recorded as £15,324,436, with the budget set at £14,219,724,
meaning an overspend of £1,104,712 was recorded.
3. A total of 302 placements have been recorded across the financial year. The largest
proportion of these are in Independent Special Schools (45% - 137) with a forecast
spend for the year of £7,762,838. The most commonly recorded primary need (35% 105) across this area is Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD).

Page 20

ASD
SEMH
SLCN
PD
Not recorded
PMLD
HI
SPLD
SLD
VI
MLD
Medical
ADHD
MSI
Total

Independent
Mainstream
36
8
27
12
6
2
6
3
3
2
1
1
107

Independent
Special
53
37
4
6
12
14

Non-maintained
Special
16
3
6
7
6
6
7

3
6

2
5

2

137

58

Total
105
48
37
25
24
20
9
9
8
8
5
2
1
1
302

Table 1

4. Independent Mainstream Settings
4.1. The Dfe defines independent schools as private schools (also known as
‘independent schools’) who charge fees to attend instead of being funded by the
government. Pupils do not have to follow the national curriculum. All private
schools must be registered with the government and are inspected regularly.
4.2. Current Spend
There are 107 placements recorded in independent mainstream schools so far over
the course of the financial year 2020-21. This includes parents’ private placements
where top up funding is provided, in line with the value paid to a maintained
mainstream or academy. For the remaining, fees are either paid in full or
contributed to by the Local Authority. Forecast for 2020-21 gives an average cost
for these placements as £19,730 with an overall cost of £2,111,128.

Figure 2

The highest overall cost by need is for ASD at £719,247 and the highest average cost
per placement is for Physical Development (PD) at £24,835.

Page 21

Primary Need

Number of Total Cost
placements

Average Cost

PD

12

£298,020.98

£24,835.08

Hearing
Impairment (HI)

2

£46,051.38

£23,025.69

Social, Emotional 8
and Mental Health
(SEMH)

£176,178.18

£22,022.27

SLCN

27

£554,540.55

£20,538.54

ASD

36

£719,246.79

£19,979.08

Specific Learning 6
Difficulties (Spld)

£112,409.33

£18,734.89

Moderate
Learning
Difficulties (MLD)

3

£48,421.69

£16,140.56

Not recorded

6

£75,440.02

£12,573.34

Medical

2

£24,668

£12,334

Visual Impairment 3
(VI)

£36,754.75

£12,251.58

ADHD

1

£12,060

£12,060

Multi-Sensory
Impairment (MSI)

1

£7,336.50

£7,336.50

Table 2

4.3. Special Educational Needs
34% of those placed within these settings have a primary need of ASD. Children and
young people with a primary need of ASD or speech, language and communication
needs account for 59% of placements in independent mainstream schools.
22 out of the 107 are recorded as high functioning, equating to 21%. 18 of these
have a primary need of either ASD, accounting for 50% of the total placements of
students with ASD.

Page 22

Primary Need
ADHD
ASD
HI
Medical
MLD
MSI
PD
SEMH
SLCN
SPLD
VI
Not recorded
Total

High
Functioning
18

1
3

22

Total

Percent High
Functioning

1
36
2
2
3
1
12
8
27
6
3
6
107

0%
50%
0%
0%
0%
0%
8%
38%
0%
0%
0%
0%
21%

Table 3

4.4 Ethnicity and Deprivation
82% (88) of the 107 placements are for CYP with a recorded ethnicity of White British
compared to 64% of Buckinghamshire maintained EHCPs and 62% of the
Buckinghamshire state funded school population.

Figure 2

The majority of the independent mainstream school cohort have home postcodes that
fall within the ACORN category 1 – Affluent Achievers – 73%. This is significantly higher
than the Buckinghamshire school population which is 42%.

Page 23

1 - Affluenent Achievers
2 - Rising Prosperity
3 - Comfortable Communities
4 - Financially Stretched
5 - Urban Adversity
6 - Not private Households
Not determined
Total

Independent mainstream
placements
78
73%
12
11%
8
7%
4
4%
3
3%
1
1%
1
1%
107

Pupils in Buckinghamshire Schools - Jan 20

All
42%
9%
23%
17%
8%
1%
1%

EHCP
31%
8%
23%
25%
12%
1%
1%

SEN Support
34%
8%
23%
22%
11%
1%
1%

Table 4

Although the sample being examined here is much smaller, there is also a significant
difference between those placed in independent mainstream schools (73%) and the
Buckinghamshire EHCP population (31%) and SEND Support population (34%).

5. Independent Special Schools
5.1 The Dfe defines an independent special school as a private school that specialises in
teaching children with special educational needs.
5.2 Costs
There are 137 placements at points during the financial year is forecast for 2020-21.
The fees for these schools are paid in full by the Local Authority from the high needs
block. Forecast for 2020-21 gives an average cost for these placements at £56,663
and a total cost for the year of £7,762,838.

Figure 3

The highest overall cost by need is for ASD at £3,441,199 and the highest average
cost per placement is for Severe Learning Difficulties (SLD) at £93,374. Special
Educational Needs

Page 24

Primary Need

Number
placements

of Total Cost

SLD

6

£560,241.22

£93,373.54

MLD

2

£144,256.67

£72,128.33

ASD

53

£3,441,199.07

£64,928.28

SEMH

31

£2,266,244.57

£61,249.85

SLCN

4

£159,717.75

£39,929.44

Left placement Aug 12
20 so not analysed

£440,767.52

£36,730.63

Profound
and 14
Multiple, Learning
Difficulties

£506,241.22

£36,160.09

Spld

£70,556.67

£23,518.89

3

Average
Cost

Table 5

5.3 Special Educational Needs
The proportion of placement by primary need shows that CYP with a primary need of
ASD or SEMH account for 66% of placement in independent special schools.
47 out of the 137 CYP are recorded as high functioning, this equates to 34%. 45 of those
recorded as high functioning have a primary need of ASD or SEMH.
Primary Need
ASD
MLD
PD
PMLD
SEMH
SLCN
SLD
Spld
Not recorded
Total

High
Functioning
28

17
2

47

Total

Percent High
Functioning

53
2
6
14
37
4
6
3
12
137

53%
0%
0%
0%
46%
50%
0%
0%
0%
34%

Table 6

5.4 Ethnicity and Deprivation

Page 25

71% (97) of the 137 placements are for CYP with a recorded ethnicity of White British
compared to 64% of Buckinghamshire maintained EHCPs and 62% of the
Buckinghamshire state funded school population.

Figure 4

The majority of the independent special school cohort have home postcodes that fall
within the ACORN category 1 – Affluent Achievers – 73%. This is significantly higher than
the Buckinghamshire school population which is 42%.

1 - Affluenent Achievers
2 - Rising Prosperity
3 - Comfortable Communities
4 - Financially Stretched
5 - Urban Adversity
6 - Not private Households
Not determined
Total

Independent special
placements
68
50%
13
9%
27
20%
15
11%
5
4%
1
1%
8
6%
137

Pupils in Buckinghamshire Schools - Jan 20

All
42%
9%
23%
17%
8%
1%
1%

EHCP
31%
8%
23%
25%
12%
1%
1%

SEN Support
34%
8%
23%
22%
11%
1%
1%

Table 7

Although the sample being examined here is much smaller, there is a significant
difference between those placed in independent special schools (50%) and the
Buckinghamshire EHCP population (31%) and SEND Support population (34%).

Page 26

Figure 5

6. Non-maintained special schools
6.1 Non-maintained special schools are defined by the Dfe as schools for children with
special educational needs that the Secretary of State for Education has approved
under section 342 of the Education Act 1996. They:




teach students with special educational needs
are independent of local authority control
operate on a not-for-profit basis

6.2 Costs
58 placements at points during the financial year are forecast for 2020-21 for nonmaintained special schools. Forecast for 2020-21 gives an average cost for these
placements at £80,486 and a total cost for the year of £4,668,205.

Figure 6

Page 27

The highest overall cost by need is for ASD at £1,212,195 and the highest average
cost per placement is for PMLD at £182,312.
Primary Need

Number
placements

of Total Cost

Average
Cost

PMLD

6

£1,093,872.09

£182,312.01

PD

7

£686,623.62

£98,089.09

SEMH

3

£273,616.11

£91,205.37

ASD

16

£1,212,194.92

£75,762.18

HI

7

£454,644.58

£64,949.23

SLCN

6

£386,910.42

£64,485.07

Left placement Aug 6
20 so not analysed

£277,925.67

£46,320.94

VI

5

£210,277.08

£42,055.42

SLD

2

£72,140.26

£36,070.13

Table 8

6.3 Special Educational Needs
The proportion of children placed in non-maintained special schools is relatively evenly
split by primary need. CYP with primary need of ASD account for 28% of placements,
followed by HI and PD accounting for 12% each.

14 out of the 58 CYP are recorded as high functioning, this equates to 24%. 11 of those
recorded as high functioning have a primary need of ASD.

Page 28

Primary Need
ASD
HI
PD
PMLD
SEMH
SLCN
SLD
VI
Not recorded
Total

High
Functioning
11

2

1
14

Total

Percent High
Functioning

16
7
7
6
3
6
2
5
6
58

69%
0%
0%
0%
67%
0%
0%
20%
0%
24%

Table 9

6.4 Ethnicity and Deprivation
74% (43) of the 58 placements are for CYP with a recorded ethnicity of White British
compared to 64% of Buckinghamshire maintained EHCPs and 62% of the
Buckinghamshire state funded school population.

Figure 7

The majority of the CYP in non-maintained special schools have home postcodes that fall
within the ACORN category 1 – Affluent Achievers – 60%. This is significantly higher than
the Buckinghamshire school population which is 42%.

Page 29

Non-maintained special
placements
1 - Affluenent Achievers
35
60%
2 - Rising Prosperity
3
5%
3 - Comfortable Communities
5
9%
4 - Financially Stretched
8
14%
5 - Urban Adversity
4
7%
6 - Not private Households
0
0%
Not determined
3
5%
Total
58

Pupils in Buckinghamshire Schools - Jan 20

All
42%
9%
23%
17%
8%
1%
1%

EHCP
31%
8%
23%
25%
12%
1%
1%

SEN Support
34%
8%
23%
22%
11%
1%
1%

Table 30

Although the sample being examined here is much smaller, there is a significant
difference between those placed in non-maintained special schools (60%) and the
Buckinghamshire EHCP population (31%) and SEND Support population (34%) classed as
Affluent Achievers according to the ACORN deprivation measure.

7. New placements
7.1 Costs
Included in the overall data are 26 placements that commenced during the financial year
2020-21, primarily from September 2020. 20-21 financial cost of these placements is
£828,505 with an average cost of £31,866. The full year cost of these placements based
on 20-21 fees would be £1,420,294 with an average cost of £54,627.

7.2 Placement Type
46% (12) of the September placements are in independent special schools and 42% (11)
in independent mainstream schools. This is an increase of 7% in the proportion of
placements in independent mainstream schools compared to all 2020-21 placements.

Page 30

Figure 8

Independent Mainstream
Primary
Need

ASD
SLCN
PD
SPLD
SEMH
Total

Total Cost
£ 75,436.48
£ 25,342.59
£ 19,747.00
£ 17,129.58
£ 16,162.81
£ 153,818.47

Average Cost
£
£
£
£
£
£

15,087.30
8,447.53
19,747.00
17,129.58
16,162.81
13,983.50

Table 41

7.3 Special Educational Needs
Across all placement types, 50% of the starters have a primary need of ASD. This
increases to 100% for placements in non-maintained special schools.

Table 52

Page 31

10 out of the 12 placements placed in Independent Special Schools were classified as
high functioning with a primary need of ASD (5) or SEMH (5), along with both of the 2
new placements in non-maintained special schools (ASD,2). This is therefore the current
year area of growth in high cost placements where Buckinghamshire has utilised the
independent / non-maintained sector.

Independent Special
Primary
Average
Total Cost
Need
Cost
ASD
£ 213,020.45 £ 42,604.09
SEMH
£ 201,115.83 £ 40,223.17
PD
£ 34,674.50 £ 34,674.50
SPLD
£ 21,501.67 £ 21,501.67
Total
£ 470,312.45 £ 39,192.70

Non-maintained Special
Primary
Average
Total Cost
Need
Cost
ASD
£ 204,373.75 £ 68,124.58
Total
£ 204,373.75 £ 68,124.58

Table 63

Table 74

7.4 Ethnicity and Deprivation
85% (22) of the 26 new placements are for CYP with a recorded ethnicity of White British
compared to 64% of Buckinghamshire maintained EHCPs and 62% of the
Buckinghamshire state funded school population.

Page 32

Figure 9

The majority of the new placements have home postcodes that fall within the ACORN
category 1 – Affluent Achievers – 58%. For the wider Buckinghamshire population, affluent
achievers are at 42%, those with EHCPs 31% and at SEN Support 34%, demonstrating a
significant difference with the rest of the SEN cohort.

September 20 placements
1 - Affluenent Achievers
2 - Rising Prosperity
3 - Comfortable Communities
4 - Financially Stretched
5 - Urban Adversity
6 - Not private Households
Not determined
Total

15
2
3
3
2
0
1
26

58%
8%
12%
12%
8%
0%
4%

Pupils in Buckinghamshire Schools - Jan 20

All
42%
9%
23%
17%
8%
1%
1%

EHCP
31%
8%
23%
25%
12%
1%
1%

SEN Support
34%
8%
23%
22%
11%
1%
1%

Table 85

8 Placement Leavers
8.1 Costs
Included in the overall data are 45 placements that ceased at the end of the 2019-20
academic year. 20-21 financial cost of these placements is £1,014,001 with an average cost
of £22,533. The full year cost of these placements based on 20-21 fees would be £2,433,603
with an average cost of £54,627.

Page 33

8.2 Placement Type
49% (22) of the leavers were in independent special schools and 36% (16) in independent
mainstream schools. Across all placement types there are a higher number of leavers than
starters.

Figure 10

9 Placement Start Dates
9.1 National Picture
Data from the DfE publication Education, health and care plans: England 2020 based on
SEN2 submission in January each year shows that since 2017 the number of CYP placed
in non-maintained special schools and independent mainstream schools in England has
remained constant while an increase has occurred in independent special school places.

Figure 11

Page 34

9.2 Placement Start Dates and Age Range
9.2(a) Independent Mainstream Schools
Placement
Start - Number
Academic of CYP
Year
2010/2011
1
2012/2013
1
2013/2014
3
2014/2015
1
2015/2016
5
2016/2017
8
2017/2018
38
2018/2019
28
2019/2020
10
Sep 2020
11
Total
106

10

Age at start of placement

ADHD

9

ASD

Number of plaements

8
HI

7

Medical

6
5

MLD

4

MSI

3

PD

2

SEMH

1

SLCN

0

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

Spld

Age

Figure 12

There has been a particular spike in placements starting upon phase transfer from
primary to secondary for those with ASD and SLCN as primary needs. There has also
been a particular increase in placements being named for independent mainstream
schools between 2017 and 2019 which is not in line with the national picture.
(b) Independent Special Schools
12

Number
of CYP
1
2
2
1
3
16
45
23
28
9
130

Number of plaements

Placement
Start Academic
Year
2009/2010
2012/2013
2013/2014
2014/2015
2015/2016
2016/2017
2017/2018
2018/2019
2019/2020
Sep 2020
Total

Age at start of placement

11

ASD

10

MLD

9

PD

8

PMLD

7

SEMH

6

SLCN

5

SLD

4

SPLD

3

Not recorded

2
1
0
4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

Age

Figure 13

Surge of placements has occurred between 2016 and 2020 which is in line with the national
picture of increased placements from approximately 2017 in the independent specialist
sector. Placements appear to spike for those with a primary area of need of ASD or SEMH at
phase transfer age and also quite significantly at Year 10 for those with ASD.
(c) Non-maintained Special Schools

Page 35

5

Age at start of placement

ASD
HI

4
Number of plaements

Placement
Start - Number
Academic of CYP
Year
2012/2013
1
2013/2014
6
2014/2015
1
2015/2016
7
2016/2017
6
2017/2018
16
2018/2019
10
2019/2020
7
Sep 2020
3
Grand Total
57

PD
PMLD

3

SEMH
SLCN

2

SLD
VI

1

Not recorded
0
4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

Age

Figure 14

Placement start dates have increased between 2017 and 2019, which is not in line with
the national picture. Due to the low numbers entering placements at different age
ranges, it is difficult to draw significant conclusions from this.
10 Key themes and Next Steps
10.1 Following this in depth analysis, weekly and monthly tracking systems have been
put in place to ensure this information is up-to-date and maintains accuracy.
10.2 Risks including £264,992.10 of potential tribunal outcomes costs for families
requesting an independent mainstream, special or non-maintained special school
that are likely to be determined before the end of the financial year has been built
into the forecast. Equally, significant work has taken place recently examining high
cost residential placements included within the independent and non-maintained
special school part of the budget, to ensure costs are shared, where appropriate,
with social care and health partners. Savings secured in September 2020 of
£160,052.45 as a result of this work have also been built into this forecast, and
savings earlier in the financial year already accounted for.
10.3 Steps have already been taken to develop our provision in Buckinghamshire to
support a greater range of children. From September 2020, the Educational
Psychologists are now offering a non-statutory service to schools and specialist
teachers have introduced a tiered approach to support that is enabling them to
support more mainstream settings earlier.
10.4 Robust decision making on requests for ARP, specialist or independent settings has
been in place from September 2019 through a multi-agency panel. Monthly
meetings scrutinising spend and suitability of high cost placements involving the
iSEND service, finance and commissioning teams are also in place. This increased
scrutiny has led to the projected spend for 2020-21 to reduce the budget compared
with 2019-20 by over £500,000. A future proposal for next financial year is to

Page 36

increase commissioning capacity to have SEND placement focus, with the post selffunding as a result of the additional scrutiny capacity it would create. This would
include two posts, one at a total cost of £69,369 and the other at £52,179 focused
on the monitoring, review and securing of new placements within the sectors
examined in this paper (total cost to HNB £121,546).
10.5 In September 2019, a new primary specialist provision was opened in
Buckinghamshire with 42 new places available, primarily for those with high
functioning SEMH and ASD needs (Chiltern Way Academy). From September 2020,
schools specialising in communication and interaction needs with learning
difficulties across the county have also increased their places (Furze Down School by
12; Heritage House School by 20; Stony Dean School by 10). Westfield School is also
planned to increase their capacity by a further 14 places from April 2021.
10.6 The ASD, SEMH Sufficiency Impact Group feeds in to the Local Area SEND
Improvement Plan has recently been reconfigured to address this area of need.
Individual workstreams chaired by Headteachers from Buckinghamshire’s
maintained special sector (ASD) and Primary PRU (SEMH) will focus on the
development of mainstream school capacity to support these key areas of need,
working in collaboration with health partners to enable effective wider provision.
The governance group for this impact group is chaired by the Head of the Integrated
SEND Service and the Head of the Integrated Commissioning Service to ensure a
collaborative approach to tackling these issues. This group will also oversee the
release of the SEND sufficiency consultation in Spring 2021 and subsequent strategy
development.
10.7 It is clear from this analysis however that the capacity for our local mainstream and
special schools to meet the needs of children and young people, particularly with
ASD, is an area for development. Opportunities to develop mainstream provision
including ARP and SEN unit provision will be a focus for the coming months.

Page 37

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8

Report to Schools Forum
Date: 13th October 2020
Title: National Funding Formula and Operational Guidance 2021-22
Author: Liz Williams, Head of Finance – Children’s Services

Recommendations:
a. To note the information contained in this report.
b. To confirm the principles to be adopted for 2021-22 local funding formula within the
over-arching principle that the local funding formula reflects the National Funding
Formula (NFF) (paragraph 6.1).
c. To agree whether a consultation is required with schools on a change to the level of
the MFG.
d. To agree whether a consultation should take place with schools on any transfer of
funding between DSG Blocks.
e. To note that the local funding formula for 2021-22, and indicative impact at school
level, will be brought back to Schools Forum for consideration in December.
Reason for decision: to outline the main changes to the NFF for schools and High Needs,
and enable consideration of the principles for the local funding formula for funding schools
in 2021-22.

1. Purpose of Report
1.1. The purpose of this report is to update Schools Forum on the Dedicated Schools
Grant (DSG) 2021-22 and any changes in the Department for Education’s (DfE)
Operational Guide.

2. Background
2.1. In July 2020 the DfE published, the Schools Revenue Funding 2021 to 2022
Operational Guide. This guide helps local authorities, and their schools forums, to
plan the local implementation of the funding system for the 2021 to 2022 financial
year.

Page 39

2.2. The DfE has made minimal changes to funding arrangements for 2021-22. As in
previous years each local authority will continue to set a local schools formula, in
consultation with local schools.
2.3. The government has confirmed that, later this year, it will put forward plans to
move to a ‘hard’ NFF in the future. A ‘hard’ NFF will determine school funding
allocations directly, rather than local funding formulae.
2.4. Within Buckinghamshire the Schools Forum has adopted the principle in recent
years that the local funding formula should move progressively towards the NFF to
avoid any significant changes to school budgets when a hard formula is adopted. In
2020-21 the formula rates for Buckinghamshire Schools are in line with the NFF
rates.

3. Key Changes to the Schools Block
3.1. Key changes to the schools NFF in 2021 to 2022 are:
a)

The incorporation of the 2019 update to the Income Deprivation Affecting
Children Index (IDACI), ensuring that the deprivation funding through the NFF
continues to target schools most likely to need additional funding.

b)

Funding previously received through the Teachers’ Pay Grant (TPG) and
Teachers’ Pension Employer Contribution Grants (TPECG), including the
supplementary fund, to mainstream schools for pupils from reception to year
11 will be allocated through the schools NFF by adding to schools’ baselines; by
increasing the basic per pupil funding; and by increasing the minimum per pupil
funding (MPPLs). This will streamline the way in which the funding through the
grants is delivered, as well as recognise the fact that these grants are part of
schools’ core funding.

c)

Improving support under the NFF for small and remote schools, by increasing
the maximum sparsity value from £26,000 to £45,000 for primary schools, and
from £67,600 to £70,000 for secondary schools.

3.2. Key features of local authority formulae arrangements in 2021 to 2022 are:
a)

The technical changes to the NFF to roll in the TPG and TPECG will be reflected
in local funding formulae, as far as possible. This will be implemented through
the basic per pupil entitlement, Minimum Per Pupil Levels of funding (MPPLs),
and the minimum funding guarantee (MFG).

b)

The incorporation of the 2019 IDACI data will also be used in local funding
formulae.

c)

The MPPLs will remain mandatory, at the new NFF values, including the
additional funding the DfE has rolled in from the TPG and TPECG.

Page 40

d)

Local authorities have the freedom to set the MFG in local formulae between
+0.5% and +2% per pupil, and should add total funding from the TPG and
TPECG to schools’ baselines, as has been done in the NFF.

3.3. Local authorities are required to consult on any changes to the level of the MFG.
3.4. Local authorities can only transfer up to 0.5% of their School Block to other blocks of
the DSG, with schools forum approval. To transfer more than this or any amount
without schools forum approval, they will have to make a request to the
Department for Education, even if the same amount was agreed in the past two
years.

4. Key Changes in the High Needs Block
4.1. The funding floor factor in the high needs national funding formula for 2021 to 2022
provides for every local authority to receive an underlying increase of at least 8%
per head of 2 to 18 population. This is based on what local authorities received in
high needs funding in 2020 to 2021. The limit on gains is set at 12%, allowing local
authorities to see up to this percentage increase under the formula.
4.2. For 2021 to 2022 the teachers’ pay grant (TPG) and teachers’ pension employer
contribution grant (TPECG) are to be incorporated within the high needs national
funding formula. The grants have been incorporated by:


increasing the basic entitlement factor of the high needs formula that pays out
on the basis of the number of pupils in special schools, from £4,000 to £4,660
to include funding currently paid for TPG and TPECG to special schools
separately and,



allocating the funding that the TPG and TPECG currently provide to alternative
provision (AP) through an additional factor in the high needs national funding
formula, because the basic entitlement factor does not include funding for AP
settings

4.3. There will be an additional DSG condition of grant requiring local authorities to pass
on to special schools, special academies, pupil referral units, AP academies and
hospital schools amounts of funding per place no less than the amounts of TPG,
TPECG and supplementary fund paid in 2020 to 2021.

5. Central Schools Services Block (CSSB)
5.1. The CSSB continues to provide funding for local authorities to carry out central
functions on behalf of maintained schools and academies, comprising two distinct
elements:



ongoing responsibilities
historic commitments

Page 41

5.2. Local authorities will continue to be protected so that the maximum per-pupil yearon-year reduction in funding for ongoing responsibilities is -2.5%, while the year-onyear gains cap will be set at the highest affordable rate of 6.45%.
5.3. In 2021 to 2022 historic commitments funding will be reduced by 20%. The
potential impact on the historic commitment allocation for Buckinghamshire
Council is a reduction of up to £800k and proposals will need to be brought to
Schools Forum in December and January as part of the budget setting process.

6. Funding Formula Principles applicable in 2021-22
6.1. Last year Schools Forum agreed the following principles to be adopted for 2020-21
within the over-arching principle that the local funding formula reflects the NFF.
a) Adopt the National Funding Formula factors.
b) Adopt the Minimum Per Pupil funding levels at the values defined in the NFF
and prorate (scale) of all other factors in the formula to match the available
allocation of funding from the DfE.
c) Set a Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) at +0.5%.
d) Use capping of gains per pupil to pay for the cost of protecting schools where
the formula reduces their budget by more than the MFG of 0.5%.
6.2. In the 2020-21 financial year 5 schools are supported through the MFG and no
school has had gains capped in order to cover the MFG cost.
6.3. Local authorities will need to consult on changes to the level of the MFG, as with the
rest of the formula. The deadline for local authorities to submit any applications to
disapply the MFG for 2020 to 2021 is 11 October 2020. The purpose of this deadline
is to get decisions back to local authorities before the APT (modelling tool) is issued
in December. Any later requests must be submitted by 20 November 2019 in order
for them to be considered in order to meet the APT submission deadline.
6.4. Schools Forum is asked to confirm the principles for the local funding formula. In
2020-21 Buckinghamshire formula factor rates are in line with the published NFF
values.
6.5. Schools Forum is also be asked to confirm any consultation that needs to take place
during the autumn term. A consultation will need to take place for:


Any changes to the MFG or the local formula.



Any proposal to move funding between DSG blocks.



Proposals for De-delegation – a separate report on this agenda includes a
proposal to consult with the Maintained Schools Sub-Committee on dedelegation for 2021-22.

Page 42

7. DSG Balances
7.1. In 2019 to 2020, local authorities with a cumulative deficit of 1% or more at the end
of the financial year (31 March 2019) were required to submit a recovery plan to the
department to outline their plan to manage their DSG spend.
7.2. In 2020 to 2021, the DfE extended the rules under the DSG conditions of grant so
any local authority with an overall deficit on its DSG account at the end of the 2019
to 2020 financial year, or whose DSG surplus has substantially reduced during the
year, must co-operate with the department in handling that situation by:


providing information as and when requested by the department about its
plans for managing its DSG account in the 2020 to 2021 financial year and
subsequently



providing information as and when requested by the department about
pressures and potential savings on its high needs budget



meet with officials of the department as and when they request to discuss the
local authority’s plans and financial situation



keep the schools forum regularly updated about the local authority’s DSG
account and plans for handling it, including high needs pressures and potential
savings

7.3. DSG management plans will need to be discussed with the schools forum and
should set out the local authority’s plans for bringing the DSG spend back into
balance. The DfE expects the chief financial officer (CFO) and appropriate SEN
colleagues to review and sign off the report periodically.

Page 43

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9

Report to Schools Forum
Date: 13th October 2020
Title: De-Delegation Proposals 2021-22

Author: Liz Williams, Head of Finance – Children’s Services

Recommendations:
To continue with the arrangements agreed last year, that the details of any de-delegation
proposals for 2021-22 be considered at a meeting of the maintained schools
subcommittee with recommendations to be brought back to Schools Forum in December
2020 for final decision.
Reason for decision: to enable consideration of the de-delegation levels for 2021-22.

1. Purpose of Report
1.1. The purpose of this report is to set out the proposals for existing de-delegations and
former ESG funded services de-delegations 2021-22 for consideration by Schools
Forum. The latest DfE Operational Guide published in August 2020 makes no
changes to the De-delegation definition or guidance.
1.2. It is proposed that, as in previous years, a Maintained Schools sub-committee is
established to consider the detailed proposals.

2. Background
2.1. Last year Schools Forum referred the de-delegation proposals to the Maintained
Schools subcommittee and its recommendations were taken back to schools forum
for a final decision. A paper setting out the services and the rates for ‘Existing’
delegation and services previously funded from the general funding rate of the ESG
(for maintained schools only) was discussed at the subcommittee meeting. The
Schools Forum constitution requires any final decision to be made at a formal
Schools Forum meeting. Only maintained school representatives may vote on dedelegation proposals affecting their schools.

Page 45

3. “Existing” De-delegated Services
3.1. Existing’ de-delegated services are for maintained schools only; funding for dedelegated services must be allocated through the formula but can be passed back,
or ‘de-delegated’, for maintained mainstream primary and secondary schools with
schools forum approval. This type of de-delegation does not apply to special
schools, nursery schools, or PRUs.
3.2. Any decisions made to de-delegate in 2020-21 related to that year only. New
decisions will be required for any service to be de-delegated in 2021-22. Schools
Forum members for primary maintained schools, and secondary maintained
schools, must decide separately for each phase whether the service should be
provided centrally. They must decide on fixed contributions for these services so
that funding can then be removed from the formula before school budgets are
issued. There may be different decisions for each phase.
3.3. De-delegated has historically been agreed for:


Contingencies (including schools in financial difficulties and deficits of closing
schools)



Staff costs supply cover (for example, long-term sickness and maternity, trade
union and public duties).

4. Proposals for Existing De-delegated services
4.1. Appendix A details the de-delegated services and rates for the current year and a
number of options for possible rates in 2021-22. In the current year it was decided
not to de-delegate funding for “Contingency – Deficits in Closing Schools” or “Staff
Costs – Union Facilities”. It was agreed that this should be reviewed for 2021-22.
4.2. It was further decided to reduce the rate of de-delegation for “Contingency –
Schools in Financial Difficulties” in 2020-21 to reduce the likelihood of surplus funds
being held and to reduce the costs to schools. Two options are considered in
Appendix A – to continue with the reduced rate or to return to the previous higher
rate.
4.3. Based on the options presented Primary maintained schools would pay a rate
ranging from £7.30 to £15 per pupil (2020-21 rate £7.30 per pupil) and Secondary
maintained schools would pay a rate ranging from £9.05 to £17.50 per pupil (202021 rate £9.05).
4.4. Schools Forum is requested to delegate detailed discussion on these proposals to
the Maintained Schools Sub-Committee for recommendations to be brought back in
December.

Page 46

5. Former ESG funded Services
5.1. Local authorities can fund services previously funded from the general funding rate
of the ESG (for maintained schools only) from maintained school budget shares,
with the agreement of maintained school members of the schools forum.
5.2. The relevant maintained schools members of the schools forum (primary,
secondary, special and pupil referral units (PRUs), should agree the amount the local
authority will retain. A single rate should be set (per 5 to 16 year old pupil) for all
mainstream maintained schools. Local authorities can choose to establish
differential rates for special schools and PRUs expressed per-place rather than perpupil and this will 4 x per pupil funding.

6. Proposals for Former ESG funded Services
6.1. The proposals for 2021-22 are to maintain the same de-delegated services and at
the 2020-21 rates of £3.50 per pupil in primary and secondary maintained schools
and £14 per place in special schools and PRUs. Appendix B provides further details.
6.2. Schools Forum is requested to delegate detailed discussion on these proposals to
the Maintained Schools Sub-Committee for recommendations to be brought back in
December.

7. Pupil Numbers
7.1. The following data has been used for modelling purposes, based on the October
2019 census. The final number will be updated for the October 2020 census:
Total pupil numbers = 41,900
(Primary Pupils: 35,600 and Secondary Pupils: 6,300)
Plus
Special schools / PRUs places =1,200 (contribution rate is 4 x primary/secondary).

Page 47

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A: Existing De-delegated services

De-delegation Area

A. Contingency OPTION 1

Proposal
Proposal
Agreed 2020Primary £ per Secondary £ Primary Total
21 rates
pupil
per pupil
Primary : £7
per pupil
Secondary
£8.75 per
pupil

A. Contingency OPTION 2

10.00

Page 49

No dedelegation in
B. Contingency- deficits of closing
2020-21.To be
schools Option 1
reconsidered
in 2021-22
B. Contingency- deficits of closing
schools Option 2

c. Union Facilities OPTION 1

No dedelegation in
2020-21.To be
reconsidered
in 2021-22

c. Union Facilities OPTION 2

D. Cover for small schools

30p per pupil

8.75

12.50

249,200

356,000

-

Total
£

Comments

Rate was reduced in 2020-21 to avoid building up
surplus.

55,125

304,325

78,750

This would reinstate values from 2019-20. Potential
to result in surplus to roll forward to future years
434,750
and/or to recognise possible increase in numbers of
schools in deficit - Q2 monitoring will inform

-

4.00

4.00

-

-

0.70

0.70

24,920

4,410

29,330 Reinstate previous values

0.30

0.30

10,680

1,890

12,570 Rate as per 2020-21.

7.30
15.00

9.05
17.50

259,880
534,000

57,015
110,250

142,400

-

-

25,200

-

-

Current DSG reserve is depleted and therefore no
surplus is being held against this risk.

-

167,600 Would reinstate a level of reserve against this risk

-

Agreed no de-delegation in 2020-21 - to be reviewed
for 2021-22

316,895 As per 2020-21
644,250 Takes into account no DSG reserve

Appendix

Total - Minimum
Total - Maximum

7.00

Secondary
total

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix B: Former ESG funded Services

De-delegation Area (former ESG)

Finance Support Specialist Finance
support for schools with deficit
budgets (Services provided by BLT
have now transferred to BCC)

Primary

Secondary

Special & PRU

2021-22 rates
estimated
budget

Notes

Proposed rates

The service helps identify financial
risk and provides targeted support to
schools in managing budgets to
avoid deficits. Schools needing
support outside of the targeted
support as detailed above will need
to purchase the relevant support
package from BC.

£2.50 per pupil
primary and
secondary/ £10
per place Special
and PRU

£89,000

£15,750

£12,000

£1.00 per pupil
primary and
secondary/ £4
per place Special
schools and
PRUs

£35,600

£6,300

£4,800

£46,700

£124,600

£22,050

£16,800

£163,450

Proposals 2021-22

£116,750 Rates as per 2020-21

It is proposed to keep the rates the
same as 2020-21

Page 51

Educational Visits (Evolve) Service
provided by Buckinghamshire
Council

Total

The traded offer proposed to
academies from September 2021 will
be £50 per school plus £1 per pupil/
£4 per place for specials/PRUs. The
difference between traded services
to Academies and maintained
schools through de-delegation is the
£50 per school fee which covers
administration costs of supporting
academies.

Rate as per 2020-21

£3.50 per pupil Primary/Secondary
and £14 per place for special/PRU

Appendix

This page is intentionally left blank

